
 

AGENDA 

Development Commission 

7:00 PM - Wednesday, July 6, 2016 

Council Chambers, 135 East Sunset Way, Issaquah WA 
 

 
Page  

  

1. CALL TO ORDER 7:00 PM 
 

3 
 

a) Commission Membership   
 

  

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 7:05 PM 
 

5 
 

a) Minutes of June 8, 2016   
 

  

3. AGENDA ITEMS  7:10 PM 
 

7 - 31 
 

a) Sunset 7 Apartments - Site 

Development Permit - SDP16-00004 

Presented by: 

Amy Tarce, Senior Planner  

 

 

33 - 86 
 

  Attachments   
 

  

4. OTHER BUSINESS / ANNOUNCEMENTS 9:00 PM 
 

  

5. ADJOURNMENT 9:15 PM 
 

  

  INQUIRIES  
 

 
 

  Please contact Christopher Wright (425) 

837-3093 or ChrisW@issaquahwa.gov. 

----------------------------- 

Meeting room is wheelchair accessible. 

American Disability Act (ADA) 

accommodations available upon request. 

Please phone (425) 837-3000 at least two 

business days in advance. 

 

Note: Times listed for meeting topics are 

approximate and items are subject to being 

shifted from the original order.  

 

 

 

Page 1 of 86

mailto:ChrisW@issaquahwa.gov


Page 2 of 86



Development Commission 

About 
Created in 1983, this commission reviews all land 

use actions requiring a Level 3 review. The 

Commission further serves as an advisory board to 

the City Council on land use actions requiring 

council approval (Level 5 review).  

 

The appearance of fairness doctrine prohibits 

Development Commission members and City 

Council members from discussing the merit of 

specific land use development applications outside 

of the formal public meeting process. Citizens, 

however, may discuss any issue with the City's 

Development Services Department. Written 

comments are also welcome. 

 

Membership 

The Development Commission is comprised of 

seven regular members, with four-year terms; and 

several alternates, with two-year terms. All 

members are appointed by the Mayor and subject 

to confirmation by the City Council. Terms expire 

April 30 of the year listed. For more information, 

see IMC 18.03.  

 
 

Staff Liaison  

Christopher Wright,  

Project Oversight Manager 

Email  

 

Regular Members  

2018 - Vacant 

2018 - Raymond Leong  

2018 - Richard Sowa 

2019 - Michael Brennan  

2019 - Randolph Harrison 

2020 - Melvin Morgan 

2020 - Kevin Price 

 

Alternate Members  

2017 - TJ Ginthner 

2017 - Vacant 

2018 - Robert Bakh 

2018 - Carl Swedberg 

 

Meetings  
Unless otherwise posted:  

 

When 
7 p.m. the first and third 

Wednesday of each month  

 

Where 
Council Chambers, 135 E. Sunset 

Way 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER a)

Page 3 of 86

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Issaquah/?Issaquah18/Issaquah1803.html#18.03.080
mailto:chrisw@issaquahwa.gov


Page 4 of 86



Development Commission 
6-8-16 
 

CITY OF ISSAQUAH 
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

MINUTES  
June 8, 2016 

 
City Hall South      135 E. Sunset Way 
Council Chambers      Issaquah, WA 98027 
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT STAFF PRESENT 
Randy Harrison, Chair 
Michael Brennan 
Raymond Leong 
Mel Morgan, Jr. 
Richard Sowa 
Kevin Price 
 

Emily Moon, Deputy City Administrator 
Lucy Sloman, Land Development Manager 
Christopher Wright, Project Manager 
 
APPLICANTS/OTHERS PRESENT 
Jim Bodoia, VIA Architecture 
 

   
CALL TO ORDER 
HARRISON, Chair, called the meeting to order at 7:02 PM.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Minutes from March 2, 2016 were approved with no changes. 
 
UPDATE: Wright explained that the Commission Members will be sent a link to a video 
regarding Public Records, Open Public Meetings, Records Management, Anti-Harassment, Ethics, 
Public Meetings and Quasi-Judicial Decisions. 
 
  Wright also explained that the training on Commission Purview and Purpose will be 
presented at the next Development Commission Meeting.  The Hearing for the Silverado 
Development Agreement was also postponed. 
 
PRESENTATIONS:   
 
Moon presented “Go Issaquah:  City’s Transportation Efforts.” 
 
Sloman presented a minor revision to the Gateway Site Development Permit.  The change involves 
reducing/eliminating tandem parking within a parking structure, reducing the footprint of a building, 
and adding surface parking.  The minor revision will be reviewed administratively, but staff wanted 
to give the Development Commission and the Public an opportunity to comment. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
Two members of the public, Connie Marsh and Mary Lynch spoke to the Gateway Revision, 
including concerns about process, SEPA review, and impacts of the revision to critical areas and 
stormwater runoff. 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS: 
 
HARRISON announced that the election of officers will take place at the next Development 
Commission meeting. 
 
With no further business to conduct, HARRISON adjourned the meeting at 8:16 PM. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES a)

Page 5 of 86



Page 6 of 86



Page 1 of 25 
 

CITY OF ISSAQUAH 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
 

STAFF REPORT  
 

July 6, 2016 
 

FILE NO.: SDP16-00004 
 

 
PROJECT: SUNSET  7  APARTMENTS 
 
OWNER: DJ Loveridge 

Thick Brick, LLC  
19538 SE 51st Street, 
Issaquah, WA 98027 

 
APPLICANT: Rick Gulstrom 

GMS Architectural Group 
1804 136th Place NE, Ste. 1 
Bellevue, WA 98005 

 
STAFF CONTACT: Amy Tarce, Senior Planner 

Development Services Department, (425) 837-3097 
 
REQUEST: Site Development Permit APPROVAL for redevelopment of an 

existing residential lot into a 7-unit 4-story multi-family 
apartment (See Attachment 5 for plans and elevations).  

 
SITE ADDRESS: 355 E. Sunset Way 
 
 
EXISTING LAND USE: 
 Subject Property: Single-family. 

 North:    Office  
 South:    Single family residential 
 East:    Single family residential  
 West:    Fourplex (2 duplex buildings) 

 
 
EXISTING ZONING: The site is zoned MF-H, Multi-family, High density. It is also 

a receiving site for Transfer Development Rights. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The site is designated “Multi-family Residential”. 
 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 7 of 86



Page 2 of 25 
 

SUBAREA: East Sunset Way Development Area in Olde Town 
 
BACKGROUND: March 18, 2015 The City’s Project Review Team held 

a Pre- Application Conference with 
the applicant. 

 
November 18, 2015 A Community Conference was held 

by the Development Commission to 
identify land use issues early in the 
review process. No decision about 
the project proposal was made. 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE:  As part of the Public Hearing process, public notice is required to be 

provided to all property owners within 300 feet of the exterior 
boundaries of the proposal site at least 10 days prior to the meeting. 
Notice of the Public Hearing was mailed out to 66 property owners on 
June 24, 2016.  Notice of the Public Hearing was also posted on the 
City’s web site calendar and the site sign.  

 
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 

1. Design Standards Checklist 
2. Vicinity Map 
3. Project Narrative, dated 3/15/2016 
4. SEPA Checklist and Mitigated Determination of Nonsignificance 
5. Plans, elevations and renderings, dated 4/15/16. 

 
 
 

I. DEVELOPMENT PERMIT REVIEW 
 
Purpose: Per IMC 18.07.410, the purpose of the Level 3 Site Development process is to 
ensure public input and review by the Development Commission, the Development 
Services Department and other departments for consistency with the development 
regulations, Design Criteria Checklist (see Chapter 18.07 IMC) and other approval criteria.  
A Level 3 review is required because the site’s primary access and/or street frontage are 
located on and/or the site abuts Sunset Way,  per the criteria for Level 3 review, where a 
proposal is a Level 2 land use review but located in one of the streets identified in the 
“Permitted Use & Level of Review Key” in IMC18.06.130. 
 
Review Process: The Issaquah Municipal Code (IMC) Section 18.04.450 states that Site 
Development Permits shall be reviewed through the Level 3 Review process. The flow chart 
in Section 18.04 for Level 3 Review requires a Site Development Permit to be approved at a 
Public Hearing by the Development Commission.  
 
 

II. SEPA Environmental Review 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 8 of 86



Page 3 of 25 
 

 
An Environmental Checklist and compliance with the WA State Environmental Policy Act is 
required prior to approval of the Site Development Permit.  The City of Issaquah is the lead 
agency for SEPA review of the project. Based on the proposed multi-family development, 
the Applicant is required to provide bicycle and pedestrian mitigation fees, as well as impact 
fees and general services fees.  
 
The City issued the Mitigated Determination of Non-Significance (See Attachment 5, SEPA 
Checklist and Mitigated Determination of Nonsignificance) on June 9, 2016. The 21-day 
public comment and appeal period ran from June 9, 2016 to June 29, 2016, No public 
comments were received. 
 
Condition 1: The Applicant shall mitigate for potential impacts on public services and 
bicycle and pedestrian facilities.  The City may approve a voluntary payment in lieu of 
other mitigation.  The current mitigation fee is $78.56/multi-family unit for general 
government, $154.35/multi-family unit for the police mitigation fee, and 
$462.75/apartment unit for the bicycle/pedestrian mitigation fee.  The mitigation fee 
will be assessed with issuance of building permits and the actual fee amount will be the 
adopted fee in effect at the time of permit issuance.  Applicant objections to the voluntary 
payment should be made during the SEPA comment period.  
 
 

III. FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
A. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
Project Overview (See Attachment 5, Plans, Elevations and Renderings) 
The project consists of a 7-unit four-story apartment building on a single lot with a lobby 
accessed off of Sunset Way and from a ground level garage. The building has undulating bays 
and roof heights, as well as recesses  for balconies  on all sides. The tallest element is the 
elevator/stair tower at the northeast corner of the site, while the lowest section is at the rear, 
next to the alley. Front, side and rear yards are provided with vegetation and resident 
community spaces, including a pea patch at the southeast corner and an open lawn at the 
southwest section of the side and back yard. Street trees are proposed along the front yard.  
 
Existing Conditions  
The project site is on Sunset Way, one of the main connection from the I-90 freeway to 
downtown Issaquah. A one-story single-family structure currently sits on the site. A chain 
link fence provides enclosure of the property frontage along Sunset Way (see Fig. 2). The site 
has no critical areas. Approximately two thirds of the site is pervious. A carport and a garage 
in the rear of the house is accessed off of an existing alley; however, there is no paved 
driveway (see Fig. 3.A). There are no existing trees on the property. One large tree sits very 
close to the eastern property line, but is located on the neighboring property. 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 9 of 86



Page 4 of 25 
 

A single-family house sits 
on the adjacent east 
property and a 4-plex 
sits on the west 
neighboring property. A 
small scale office 
building is across Sunset 
Way and single-family 
homes are found across 
the alley. The houses 
across the alley has their 
primary entries facing SE 
Andrews Street. (See 
Attachment 5 for 
additional Existing 
Conditions Photographs) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fig. 1. Existing Adjacent 
Uses 
 

 

 
Fig. 2. View of Project Site from Sunset Way 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 10 of 86



Page 5 of 25 
 

 
Fig. 3.A  View of Alley Facing West, approaching the Project Site (The project site is in the 
background, shown as open green area with small roofed structure.) 

 
Fig. 3.B  View of Alley with Project Site shown on the right 
 

 
Fig. 3.C. Streetscape along Sunset Way with Office Building on right and one-story 4-
plex on the left.  Behind the 4-plex is a 4-story apartment building. 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 11 of 86



Page 6 of 25 
 

B. APPLICABLE LAND USE STANDARDS 
 
1. CONSISTENCY WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 
The project site is in the East Sunset Way Development Area of Olde Town. The 
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element describes the vision for this area below: 
 

East Sunset Way offers the most significant potential for change and transition to a 
pedestrian friendly, mixed-use activity area, developed to be served conveniently with 
transit. Sunset Way is targeted for landscaping and streetscape improvements, this will 
encourage pedestrian activity, transit accessibility and buffer residential areas. These 
improvements will enhance the neighborhood quality not only from residents in the area, 
but also visitors that are encouraged to explore the area for small shops or specialty 
services. Multifamily units above ground floor retail and services, or courtyard multifamily 
will keep the streets pedestrian friendly and accessible. 

 
In Chapter 4, Circulation and Parking Element, Figure IV-A, Circulation Network identifies 
Sunset Way as a minor arterial and a bikeway. Figure IV-D, Trails Plan, also reinforces the 
bikeway along Sunset Way. More recently, a cycle track along the south side of Sunset Way 
has been identified by the Walk and Roll Study. Chapter 4 also noted that Sunset Way 
streetscape improvement was a high priority for capital improvements at the time of the 
adoption of the Comprehensive Plan in 1999.  
 
In Chapter 5 of the Comprehensive Plan, the Urban Design concept for development can be 
found in the following subsections: 

Sunset Way Activity Area (p.V-14) 
East Sunset Way from the edge of the CBD to the Sunset Interchange will continue the 
transition towards multifamily units. The Olde Town Plan will direct, to the Sunset Way 
corridor, small-scale high density multifamily residential and neighborhood commercial as 
mixed use developments. New commercial within mixed use residential will expand both 
the availability of local services the neighborhood population who will use the local 
services. The consolidation of small lots may be required to make redevelopment feasible. 

 
Urban Design Focus: Use Sunset Way development to provide additional housing 
opportunities within Olde Town and support the CBD as a livable pedestrian-friendly and 
accessible activity area. 
 
Strategy: Assure that new development is a sufficient size and density to economically 
support the desired local services, transit and pedestrian activity. New multifamily will 
utilize courtyard and other pedestrian-friendly designs. This area will include small scale 
offices and other neighborhood-oriented commercial uses to supplement the anticipated 
multifamily. Integrated into Sunset Way will be distinct landscaping to soften the 
environment to offset increasing traffic and land use intensity. Specific design guidelines 
for Sunset Way will be used to encourage courtyard housing and building articulation to 
break up building mass and reflect the surrounding small scale. New development along 
Sunset Way will enhance walkway links for residents to parks, open space, and trails. 
Sunset Way development will maintain direct connection to Front Street and improve the 
streetscape to emphasize that connection. The Transit Center along Sunset Way will be 
supported by transit friendly development that eases use of transit services. 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 12 of 86



Page 7 of 25 
 

Staff Analysis:  
To summarize, the key principles embodied in the Comprehensive Plan policies and design 
concept for East Sunset Way are as follows: 

• Small-scale high density mixed-use development with neighborhood-oriented 
commercial uses  

• As a transition/buffer for single-family residential area 
• Pedestrian-friendly streetscape 
• Multi-family units with ground-floor commercial  
• Pedestrian connection to Front Street, parks, open space and trails  

 
The intent for the East Sunset Way Development Area is to allow for small-scale office and 
higher density multi-family developments to co-exist side by side within the whole subarea 
and not necessarily within one development. This is reinforced by the way the Permitted Uses 
Table identifies single-use land uses as allowed in the CBD. It is expected that treatment of 
massing and height, as well as landscaping, will be used to minimize the impact of the more 
intense uses from the single-family uses in the CBD. 
 
There is also a strong emphasis in creating a pedestrian-friendly streetscape and including 
ground floor retail in multi-family developments to encourage walking and transit use. The 
buildings are to be scaled down through the use of articulation and modulation to break the 
building mass.  
 
The Transit Center mentioned in the Comprehensive Plan does not exist today but the City 
maintains its interest in locating a transit center in Olde Town in the future. 
 
Conclusion: Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan at this phase of review. 

 
 
2. COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEVELOPMENT AND DESIGN STANDARDS (Issaquah 

Municipal Code Article 18) 
 

2.1 Zoning District (IMC 18.06) The review of this project for compliance with the Land 
Use Code will be based on its designation of the property in a Multifamily- High (MF-H) 
zoning district. In addition to standards found in IMC 18.06.100, this project is subject to 
the Multi-family and Duplex development standards in IMC 18.06 and 18.07.440. 

 
A. Intent. IMC 18.06.100.H establishes the intent of the Multi-family High Density 

zoning district as follows:  
 

The primary purpose of this zoning district is to provide for high density multifamily 
neighborhoods, in direct proximity to a variety of urban services and commercial uses. 
Duplexes and multifamily units are permitted uses. Senior housing, recreational uses, 
small scale retail, and lower intensity urban services are permitted as governed by the 
Table of Permitted Land Uses; provided, that traffic and other related impacts are not 
detrimental to the district. In addition to the objectives stated in the Purpose and Intent 
section of this chapter, the following objectives also apply to this district: 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 13 of 86



Page 8 of 25 
 

1.     Provide opportunities for high density multifamily dwellings in direct 
proximity to commercial and retail services while preserving open space 
areas; 

2.     Require landscape buffers which separate neighboring land uses and arterial 
roadway from dwelling units; 

3.     Locate housing in close proximity to a range of urban services, to facilitate 
transportation alternatives and encourage pedestrian access; 

4.     Require that traffic generated from high density multifamily use will not pass 
through single family neighborhoods; and 

5.     Provide opportunities for limited scale retail, office, and service uses as part of 
a mixed use development. (Ord. 2462 § 17, 2006; Ord. 2447 § 31, 2005; Ord. 
2108 § 6.3.4, 1996). 

 
B. General Standards 

ITEM   CRITERIA PROPOSED Analysis 
Maximum Density: 29 du/acre 23.33 du/acre (7 

units in 0.3 acre) 
Complies 

Minimum Lot Size: None NA*  
Max. Impervious surface: 50% 50% Complies 
Min. Pervious surface:                            50% 50% Complies 
Max. Base Building Height: 40 feet 46 feet 6 inches Complies through 

Admin. Adjustment 
of Standards 

  
SETBACKS CRITERIA PROPOSED Building Setback 

Proposed 
Front Yard (North) 10 feet 10 feet 11 feet 
Rear Yard (South) 20 feet 20 feet 20 feet 
Side Yard (East) 5 feet 5 feet 16 feet 6 inches 
Side Yard (West) 5 feet 5 feet 17 feet 6 inches 
 

Staff Analysis:  
The application complies with the development standards, as shown in the table above. 
 
Conclusion: Complies with Standards at this phase of review. 

 
C. Building Height (IMC18.07.060) 

The proposed height, at approximately 46 feet 6 inches, exceeds the maximum base 
height of 40 feet allowed for the zoning district. An Administrative Adjustment of 
Height Standards to allow the building to exceed the base height was approved and 
the Notice of Decision issued on June 15, 2016. The elevator and stair tower is 
included in the height exceptions, specifically called out in IMC 18.07.060.4 (g) & (h). 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 14 of 86



Page 9 of 25 
 

 
Staff Analysis:  
The Notice of Decision for the Administrative Adjustment of Height Standards 
includes the staff analysis, conclusion and a condition of approval, which states: 
The exterior design of the elevator and stair tower shall be further refined to 
architecturally integrate with the rest of the structure and reinforce the pedestrian-
scale elements of the building. 
 
Conclusion: Complies with Standards, with conditions, at this phase of review. 

 
2.2 Nonmotorized facilities (IMC 18.07.080) 

All new multifamily residential and nonresidential developments are required to 
provide nonmotorized facilities in accordance with IMC 18.07.080 B. These 
developments shall provide connections of required facilities with any existing public 
nonmotorized facility and/or provide a stub for future connection to any proposed 
public nonmotorized facility as documented in the Issaquah Comprehensive Plan. 

 
A. Pedestrian Facilities: 

1.  Sidewalks: Any required sidewalks in public rights-of-way shall be provided 
consistent with the adopted and/or amended Issaquah Standards and 
Specifications: Streets and Related Work. 

 
Staff Analysis:   
The existing sidewalk along the south side of Sunset Way is 6-foot wide and flushed 
with the roadway grade. This configuration does not meet the City’s Streets Standards 
for Sunset Way, which is classified as a minor arterial. A minor arterial consists of: 

 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 15 of 86



Page 10 of 25 
 

Based on the section drawing above (see Section Detail No. T-13 of the City’s Street 
Standards) a 5 – 12 foot wide raised sidewalk and at least 5-foot wide planter strip is 
required on each side of the minor arterial.  
 
The Applicant will be required to provide a fee-in-lieu of constructing new sidewalks on 
Sunset Way (Please see Street Improvement staff discussion at the end of this Staff 
Report for a detailed explanation of this requirement, and the associated condition of 
approval.)   
 
The Applicant is also required to pay the non-motorized facility mitigation fees, as 
stated in the SEPA Mitigated Determination of Non-Significance, to contribute to the 
development of systemwide bicycle and pedestrian facilities. 
 
Please see staff discussion and recommended conditions for Street Improvements, at 
the end of this report. 

 

2.    Walkways: Barrier-free walkways providing the most direct route through a 
development shall be provided between public entrances and the nearest 
public sidewalk, trail, or shared use corridor. 

(1)    Walkway Connection Frequency: One walkway from a nonresidential 
or multifamily building to a public sidewalk is required in all instances 
with at least one (1) additional walkway required to the public 
sidewalk for each two hundred fifty (250) feet of street frontage. 

(2)    Multiple Building Walkway Systems: Not applicable to this proposal 

(3)    Large Building Walkway Systems: Subsections (B)(1)(b)(2)(A), (B), (E), 
(F) and (G) of this section apply to individual buildings of fifteen 
thousand (15,000) square feet or greater in addition to other 
requirements of this section. 

(4)    Size: All walkways must be at least five (5) feet wide, excluding 
vehicular overhang, displays, and storage. 

(5)    Materials: All walkways must be composed of materials that are 
permanent and visually distinctive from parking lot paving. Said 
materials shall also be consistent with ADA access. 

(6)    Safety: All walkways must be physically separated from vehicular area 
by grade, landscaping strips, berms, barriers, curbs or similar means, 
provided in a manner that retains pedestrian visibility. 

(7)    Lighting: See IMC 18.07.107, Outdoor lighting, for minimum lighting 
requirements. 

(8)    Transit Access: A walkway connection to the public sidewalk must be 
made within one hundred fifty (150) feet of an adjacent bus stop. 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 16 of 86



Page 11 of 25 
 

Staff Analysis:   

The Walkways standards are meant to ensure pedestrian facilities are provided within 
the site to encourage walking and pedestrians have safe, convenient and easy access to 
the building/s from the street. The proposed multi-family building has one entrance 
from Sunset Way and one entrance from the garage. The street entrance is provided 
with a 5-foot wide walkway. The project will not be required to provide an additional 
connection to a bus stop. The Sunset Way sidewalk provides connection to the existing 
bus stop a block east, in front of the multi-family building at 487 Sunset Way. Sidewalks 
and walkways will be further reviewed for compliance with the above standards as part 
of the construction permit review.   

 
B. Bicycle and Shared Use Nonmotorized Facilities: 

1. Bicycle Lanes: Any required bicycle lanes in public rights-of-way shall be 
provided consistent with the adopted and/or amended Issaquah Standards 
and Specifications: Streets and Related Work and the Comprehensive Plan 
Bicycle and Shared Use Corridor Map. 

2. Shared Use Corridors: All shared use corridors shall comply with all 
applicable requirements for walkways in subsection (B)(1)(b) of this 
section. Shared use corridors shall be marked with directional signs to 
indicate shared use in a manner consistent with IMC 18.11.170. Shared use 
corridors shall be at least ten (10) feet wide. 

3. Bicycle Parking: Bicycle parking shall be provided consistent with IMC 
18.09.030(I), Bicycle Parking. (see staff analysis under “Parking”) 

 

Staff Analysis:   

As shown on the street section for a minor arterial (see Pedestrian Facilities section 
above), a five-foot wide on-grade bike lane is required on both sides of Sunset Way. The 
existing on-street parking along Sunset Way is not consistent with the standard for 
minor arterials, since the location is supposed to be used for the bike lanes. Since the 
adoption of the Street Standards, new non-motorized transportation priorities were 
established for Olde Town through the Walk and Roll study. The Comprehensive Plan 
Transportation Element has been updated to include a multi-use trail along Sunset Way. 
However, the implementation of this multi-use trail has yet to be evaluated in light of 
other needs and conditions along Sunset Way, including the need for on-street parking. 

City staff has been tasked by the City Council to look at the feasibility of locating a bike 
lane on Sunset Way. It is unlikely that the Applicant will be required to construct the 
bike lane for their portion of Sunset Way since a bike route along Sunset Way needs to 
be continuous and consistent in design in order to be functional. However, the Applicant 
will be required to pay a fee-in-lieu of improvements (see Condition 10). 

 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 17 of 86

http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/issaquah/html/Issaquah18/Issaquah1811.html#18.11.170
http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/issaquah/html/Issaquah18/Issaquah1809.html#18.09.030


Page 12 of 25 
 

2.3 Multi-family Development Standards (IMC 18.07.440) 
A.  Purpose and Intent: The purpose and intent of requiring specific 

standards for multifamily and duplex development are to: 
1. Ensure multifamily and duplex residential development which is 

compatible with the scale and character of the neighborhood or 
community in which it is located; 

2. Provide a safe source of housing for residents of the City which includes 
amenities such as usable open space; 

3. Provide the opportunity for urbanized lifestyles that would be located 
close to a range of urban services;  

4. Encourage a sense of community within each cluster and within each 
overall development; and 

5. Provide that impacts to public services and facilities are mitigated. 

 
Staff Analysis:  
Design standards in the Olde Town for Multi-family development and the 
development standards for the MF-H will ensure that the proposal will be 
compatible in scale and character to the multi-family zone along Sunset Way 
and the properties across the alley from  the project. The 50% pervious area 
will be designed as usable open space and will contribute to the sense of 
community for the residents of the apartment. The site plan shows a lawn for 
passive recreation along the southwestern half of the property and a pea patch 
at the southeast corner of the lot (see Preliminary Landscape Plan, sheel L.1). 
 
Item 3 above implies that the character of the multi-family zones is intended 
to be more urban. The design of the ground floor of the building and the 
Sunset Way streetscape provide ground-floor architectural elements to create 
a more urban character such as the provision of large windows and a glass 
entry to the residential lobby, the location of the building with minimal 
setback from the sidewalk, providing parking under the building and orienting 
the façade of the building to the street instead of a parking lot or the interior of 
the site.    

 
B. Diversity:  

1. Unit Type: Diversity of unit types is encouraged, including, but not limited 
to, senior housing, special needs and the low income rental market as 
defined by current King County Standards [Countywide Planning Policies];  

2. Location: Multifamily shall be considered a desirable component of mixed 
use developments and shall be encouraged. 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 18 of 86



Page 13 of 25 
 

Staff Analysis:  
The proposed apartment is a mix of one-, two-, and three-bedroom units. Given 
the size of the development, the proposal provides a relatively diverse mix of 
units. 

 
 

C. Permitted Locations and Review Required: The permitted locations and 
review required for multifamily and duplex development are governed by the 
Table of Permitted Land Uses (IMC 18.06.130).  

 
Staff Analysis:  
The proposal for a 7-unit multi-family apartment building is consistent with 
the zoning district for the property. The properties along Sunset Way between 
the I-90 ramp and Front Street in downtown Issaquah has been evolving into 
a more intense land use from its former single-family use, as intended by the 
Comprehensive Plan vision for this area. 

 
 

D. Approval Criteria: Approval for all proposals for multifamily or duplex 
developments shall be permitted only if all the following approval criteria are 
met: 
1. Access and Circulation:  

a.   Motorized: Vehicular access shall be provided such that it does not 
negatively impact adjacent land uses. Internal circulation shall also be 
provided, such that it does not interfere with pedestrian access or 
internal circulation; 

b.   Nonmotorized: Pedestrian walkways shall be provided within a project 
and as linkages to adjacent projects. 

 
Staff Analysis:   
Motorized Circulation: Vehicular access is through an existing alley (See sheet 
A2.2, Circulation Site Plan). The driveway width is reduced to the minimum 
required, at 17 feet (see Sheet C2.0 of plans), and has a length of 20 feet, 
allowing for ample depth for a vehicle parked on the surface parking space to 
back out, if necessary. The driveway will be paved in concrete and connect 
directly to the alley.  

The alley right-of-way width, which spans 20 feet, is not clearly demarcated 
with a paved surface. Currently, adjacent properties encroach into the 20-feet 
right-of-way, using the edge of the alley for storage of garbage bins or parallel 
parking (see Fig. 3A above). The Applicant will be required to pave the full-
width of the alley as part of mitigation for transportation impacts to the 
adjacent properties. 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 19 of 86



Page 14 of 25 
 

Nonmotorized Circulation: Pedestrian walkways to the building from Sunset 
Way and the alley are limited due to the impervious area limitations of the 
site. There is an existing 6-foot wide sidewalk along Sunset Way that leads 
directly to the building entry from the street.  

(See the City’s future plans for Sunset Way improvements above, under the 
Pedestrian Facilities section and below, under Street Improvements.) 

Condition 2: The alley shall be repaved to provide unobstructed passage for the 
full 20-feet width required, from the western property line of the Sunset 7 project 
to the edge of the right-of-way of 4th Place SE. 

 

Fig. 4. Red arrow shows length of alley to be repaved by Applicant. Yellow square 
delineates the project site. 

2. Building Modulation: Building modulation shall occur on all multifamily 
structures, including townhouses and residential development associated 
with residential mixed use development and is intended to break up the 
overall bulk and mass of the exterior of a multifamily building. Modulation 
should also add character to the overall building exterior as well as to 
individual units.  

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 20 of 86



Page 15 of 25 
 

a.   Building facade modulation should occur at every twenty-five (25) feet 
of wall length. The modulation can take the form of decks, balconies, 
indentations, extrusions and other various forms; and  

b.   Minimum modulation depth shall be approximately three (3) feet; and 

c.   Minimum modulation width shall be approximately eight (8) feet. 

 
Staff Analysis:  
The building design meets the dimensional requirements for modulation. This will be 
reviewed again during Building Permit as details are developed (See sheets A 4.1 and 
A4.2 of the attached plan set for elevation drawings). 

Criteria 3 is for duplexes and does not apply to this project. 

4.   Parking: Parking shall be determined for multifamily developments, as 
established in the Table of Off-Street Parking Standards (IMC 18.09.050). 

Staff Analysis:  
The proposal complies with the parking requirement. Table of Off-Street Parking 
Standards (IMC 18.09.050) indicates that multi-family residential projects with units 
other than studio apartments are required to provide 2 spaces per unit. The project 
proposes 7 dwelling units; 13 spaces are provided in a garage, including one van 
accessible stall, and one space located outside of the garage, for a total of 14 parking 
spaces. 

Per IMC 18.09.090.H, Compact Stalls, 60% of parking spaces provided may be compact 
stalls. This project is proposing a total of 14 spaces; therefore, up to 8 stalls can be 
compact spaces. Currently, the site plan shows 6 compact stalls inside the garage and 
one in the rear yard. 

Bicycle parking is required per IMC 18.09.030.I at the ratio of 5% of the required 
automobile parking spaces for the first 300 required auto stalls.  Therefore, a 
minimum of 1 bicycle space is required. Bike parking is provided in the garage, next to 
the workshop. 
 
Per 18.09.110, no loading spaces are required for multi-family developments. 
However, a space for moving trucks near the elevator should be provided. It is 
expected that moving trucks will park on the street. However, when the new Sunset 
Way cycletrack is constructed, parking along the south side of the street will be 
removed. The applicant should identify an alternative plan for moving trucks to park 
and access the elevator.  

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 21 of 86

http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/issaquah/html/Issaquah18/Issaquah1809.html#18.09.050


Page 16 of 25 
 

5.   Private or Common Usable Outdoor Space: Every multifamily development, 
including townhouses, shall provide private outdoor space for individual units 
or a larger common, outdoor space for the residences. The purpose of 
requiring usable open space is to provide this amenity for the residents of 
these developments. The usable outdoor space, whether provided on an 
individual or community basis, may consist of pervious and impervious 
surfaces.  

a.   Common Outdoor Space: Common outdoor space shall be provided in the 
form of one or several outdoor balconies, patios, decks or gardens. 
Common outdoor space shall be easily accessible to all residents of the 
complex and no common outdoor space shall be attached to any individual 
unit. 

b.    Containment of Activity Areas: Activity areas shall be designed so that they 
do not interfere with incompatible on-site uses; for example, children’s 
play areas shall not overflow into parking lots or pedestrian pathways. 

c.    Minimum Outdoor Space per Unit: At a minimum, each unit shall have a 
total of forty-eight (48) square feet of outdoor space, whether provided for 
individual units as private outdoor space or as common open space. 

d.    Private Outdoor Space: Private outdoor space shall be provided in the 
form of private outdoor balconies, patios, or decks attached to individual 
units. Minimum length and width of each private outdoor space shall be 
eight (8) by six (6) feet. 

Staff Analysis:  
Each residential unit is provided with a balcony ranging in size from  60 s.f. to 70 s.f., 
with a standard depth of 6 feet. The balconies are located where they will not be 
impacted negatively by any activities that are incompatible with the residents’ 
enjoyment of the outdoors from their units. Each unit is provided with a minimum 
size of 6’ x 10’ of balcony space. 

 
6.   Roofline Variation: Roofline variation is intended to break up the overall bulk 

and mass of a multifamily building. Roofline variation shall occur on all 
multifamily structures with rooflines which exceed fifty (50) feet in length. 
Roofline variation shall be achieved using one (1) or more of the following 
methods: 
a.    Vertical off-set ridge line; 

b.    Horizontal off-set ridge line; 

c.    Variations of roof pitch; or 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 22 of 86



Page 17 of 25 
 

d.    Any other technique approved by the Planning Director/Manager which 
achieves the intent of this section. 

Staff Analysis:  
The roof is well-modulated and broken into smaller roofs. The required rear setback 
from the property line for building height above 35 feet also created a cascading roof 
form along the alley side of the property (see staff discussion about height and 
setbacks). 

 
7.    Screening: 

a.   Parking Area: The parking area shall be screened to visually buffer areas 
within the project complex and adjacent properties; 

b.   Structures: Screening of structures from adjacent properties shall be 
provided, such as landscaping, fences, berms or other similar materials 
and/or designs. (Ord. 2471 § 5, 2006; Ord. 2108 § 7.4.8, 1996). 

Staff Analysis:  
Screening of garage walls along the east and west facades from adjacent properties 
consist of 6-foot tall fences along the property lines. Screening of the garage from 
resident views is more critical on the west elevation since the side yard is used as a 
lawn for recreational use of residents. The east side yard is primarily vegetated and 
less accessible to the residents (see Landscape Plan, sheet L1 of Attachment 5). The 
two ventilation openings visible from 
Sunset Way are recessed from the street 
and behind the extended porch area. The 
garage ventilation openings are provided 
with vertical grills, which are prohibited 
in the Olde Town Design Standards. The 
Applicant will be required to provide a 
refined design of the garage openings at 
the construction permit phase.  Examples 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 23 of 86



Page 18 of 25 
 

of acceptable garage opening designs are provided here. The designs of these garage 
opening grills complement the architectural style of the building and provide 
aesthetic interest at the pedestrian level. 

  
One parking space outside of the garage is screened with an evergreen hedge and a 
low wall. It shows the hedge within the sight clearance triangle. The hedge is 
considered a sight obstruction within the sight triangle and is prohibited by the City 
Street Standards.  
 

Condition 3:  The garage openings shall be provided with decorative grills, such as 
the examples included in the staff report, that complement the character of the 
building or the community spaces that are adjacent to it. 
 
Condition 4: The parking space visible from the alley shall be screened with 
architectural and landscape elements. 

 
Conclusion: Complies with the Criteria for Multi-family Development Standards, 
with conditions, at this phase of review. 

 
2.3 Design Standards 

The design standards that govern the project site is Appendix 3 of IMC 18.07, 
Design Guidelines for the Cultural and Business District of Issaquah 

 
Staff analyzed the proposal for compliance with the design standards at the Community 
Conference phase. Initial review of the proposed building design showed that the design 
has met most of the requirements in the Design Standards, including:  

1. Building modulation and application of architectural details to reduce the scale of 
the building 

2. Clearly-defined building entry 
3. Pitched roofs with a min. 4/12 slope and gabled roof facing a street 
4. Driveway and garage access in the alley (driveways are prohibited from Sunset 

Way) 
5. Screening of parking space from residential units across the alley 
6. Walls facing Sunset Way shall be modulated with bays and recesses at least 8 ft. 

wide and no more than 25 ft. wide and at least 3 ft. deep. 
7. Windows facing street have substantial trips and vary in size 
8. Durable exterior materials include concrete masonry units at the base and fiber 

cement board for siding.  The lap siding and board and batten siding provide 
texture, pattern and articulation to the building façade 
 

The Applicant has revised the design to meet the outstanding items identified during the 
Community Conference, particularly the pedestrian-scale treatment of the ground floor 
facing Sunset Way. One detail required that is not provided is the special paving for the 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 24 of 86



Page 19 of 25 
 

walkway to the building entry at Sunset Way. Under the Front Yard Treatment section of 
the Design Standards, front yards are required to have an entrance element between the 
sidewalk and the building, limited to 6 items listed (see p.1 of Attachment 1, Design 
Standards Checklist). None of the six items are provided on this project. In another 
section of the Design Standards, pedestrian-scale lighting is required, which is also 
identified as one of 6 entrance elements acceptable for this project. 

 
Condition 5: Pedestrian-scale lighting shall be provided along the walkway, from 
the public sidewalk to the building entry. Lighting style shall complement and 
reinforce the architectural style of the building. 

 
Staff detailed analysis and conclusions can be found in Attachment 1, Design Standards 
Checklist. 
 
Conclusion: Complies with the Design Standards, with conditions, at this phase of 
review. 

 
2.4 Exterior Lighting  

The project will need to meet the requirements of the Outdoor Lighting Standards, 
IMC 18.07.107 with regard to exterior lighting of the walkway to the building entry 
on Sunset Way, the driveway and garage entry, and other exterior landscaping 
proposed by the Applicant, which has not been identified at this time. The 
requirements for Low Density Residential/Multifamily Residential would apply. A 
lighting plan, meeting the submittal requirements of IMC 18.07.107(D) will need to 
be submitted. 
 

Staff Analysis: The Design Standards for Multi-family Development in Olde Town 
require pedestrian-scale lighting for building entries, between the public sidewalk and 
the front door. The proposal has not provided any information about pedestrian-scale 
lighting. Exterior lighting photometrics shall be reviewed for compliance with the 
Exterior lighting standards at construction permit. 
 
Conclusion: Compliance to lighting standards will be reviewed in detail at 
construction permit. 

 
2.5 Landscaping and Tree preservation  

The landscape plan will need to meet the requirements of the City’s Landscape 
Code, IMC 18.12. Some of these requirements include an evaluation of the 
worthiness to preserve existing trees and other landscaping on site; a soil analysis 
and evaluation of the practical use of the existing soil; a water budget analysis and 
irrigation system design. 

 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 25 of 86



Page 20 of 25 
 

The landscaping should complement the views and focal points of the building and 
site and the parking garage should be enhanced with landscape areas to buffer the 
views of the garage from abutting residential properties.  Right-of-way landscaping 
will also be required. 
IMC 18.12.1370 requires multi-family development to provide 4 significant trees 
for every 5,000 s.f. of lot area and IMC 18.12.1285 prescribes the Tree Retention 
requirements for a multi-family development at 25% of the total caliper of 
significant trees in the developable area. 
  
IMC18.12.105 prescribes landscape screening requirements for parking garages. It 
includes 100% coverage with shrubs and groundcover for the area set aside as 
landscape screening of the parking structure. Perimeter screening also requires 
either a 10-foot wide planting area with Type 1 Landscaping or a 5-foot wide 
planting area with Type 2 Landscaping and trellis with climbing vines. 
 
IMC18.12.100 prescribes landscape requirements for surface parking areas. For 
parking areas with less than 25 spaces, perimeter screening shall be either a 6-foot 
high fence or an evergreen hedge with shrubs spaced 3-feet on center. 

 
Staff Analysis: 
A preliminary landscape plan has been provided with the Site Development 
Permit submittal (see Sheet L1). No existing trees are found on the property 
so the Applicant does not have to meet the Tree Retention rate of 25%. One 
large tree on Sunset Way sits outside of the project property line. However, 
the Applicant is required to meet the Tree Density requirement.  With a lot 
area of  13,200 s.f., a total of 11 trees are required. Thirteen trees, exclusive of 
the 3 street trees, are proposed. On-site trees are meant to provide visual 
screening of the building from adjacent neighbors and consist of evergreen 
and deciduous trees. Site amenities are provided in the side and rear yards. A 
pea patch is proposed at the southeast corner and an open lawn on the 
southwest section of the side yard. Based on the Design Standards (see 
Attachment 1), additional landscape details will be required at construction 
permit to determine whether the project complies with all the standards.  
 
The Landscape Plan shows vegetation along the east and west parking garage 
walls but none for the southwest corner. Additional landscape screening will 
be required for this area. The proposed screening for the one parking space in 
the rear yard is shown as a combination of a 42-inch wall and vegetation, but 
no details of the height. While the plans show a sight triangle for the driveway, 
the City Streets Standards do not have sight triangle requirements for alleys 
and driveways connecting to alleys. Therefore, the screening for this parking 
space shall be required to meet the standards prescribed in IMC18.12.100. 

 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 26 of 86



Page 21 of 25 
 

Condition 6:  Additional Type 1 or Type 2 landscape screening shall be 
provided along the south property line to screen views of the parking 
garage from residential uses across the alley. 
 
Condition 7:  The Plant Schedule of the Landscape Plan shall include the 
following information for each plant species, in addition to planting size 
and spacing:  
• Size of plant at maturity, including height and width/spread 
• Plant category, whether deciduous or evergreen/coniferous 
• Additional plant characteristics required to meet the standards, 

such as drought resistance and which plants will provide year-round 
color 

 
Condition 8:  Trees proposed for the side yards shall have a mature size that will not 
create an overcrowded condition for the tree roots and maintenance issues for the 
apartment building in the future. A combination of deciduous and evergreen trees 
with longer life span is preferred and should take into consideration the livability of 
residents and neighbors. 

 
Conclusion: Complies with the Landscape Standards, with conditions, at this 
phase of review. 

 
2.6 Waste Facilities & Recycling 

The waste and recycling containers are shown to be stored inside the garage. 
They will be rolled out to the edge of the alley during trash pick-up days, 
similar to the manner waste is picked up for other properties along the alley. 

 
Condition 9: A location within the lawn area shall be designated for 
temporary storage of trash containers to ensure that containers do not stored 
in the alley right-of-way during pick-up days. 

 
Conclusion: Complies with the Waste Facilities Standards, with condition, at this 
phase of review. 

 
3. OTHER CITY REQUIREMENTS  

 
A. STREET IMPROVEMENTS  

The Applicant is required to provide half-street improvements; however, the 
streetscape design for Sunset Way has not been determined. Sunset Way is 
currently being considered for one of 4 capital improvement projects that the City 
Council identified for bond funding consideration this Fall, as part of a ballot 
measure. The Council has instructed staff to develop a conceptual design for Sunset 
Way by October 2016, after which time the Council will make a final decision 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 27 of 86



Page 22 of 25 
 

whether Sunset Way will be included among the capital projects to be put forth to 
the public for consideration. Given the timing of the approval for this Site 
Development Permit ahead of the Council’s decision for Sunset Way, the motorized, 
bike and pedestrian facilities required for Sunset Way may not be determined until 
after this project has an approved Land Use Permit and Building Permit. Therefore, 
in lieu of building the half-street frontage improvements on Sunset Way, the 
Applicant will be required to pay a fee-in-lieu. For this review, the current Streets 
Standards for a minor arterial and the Comprehensive Plan Transportation Element 
will be used as the basis for the determination of the fee-in-lieu amount. The 
Applicant’s Traffic Impact Fees will be credited with the fee-in-lieu. 

 
Condition 10:  The Applicant shall pay a fee-in-lieu for street frontage 
improvements equivalent to constructing sidewalks, curbs and gutters, planter 
strip along the south side of Sunset Way and half of the roadway width based on the 
City’s streets standards for a minor arterial. The fee-in-lieu shall include cost for 
design up to final construction of a typical City capital project.  
 
The Applicant shall receive credit on their Traffic Impact Fees for paying the fee-in-
lieu. The Applicant shall provide the City with an order of magnitude cost estimate 
for the half-street frontage improvements with the construction permit application. 
In order to receive the Traffic Impact Fees credit, the cost estimate shall be 
approved by the City. 

 
B. Storm Drainage 

Storm drainage will be required to follow the applicable King County Surface 
Water Design Manual. All runoff from the site will be infiltrated onsite. The site is 
within the mapped area where stormwater Low Impact Development must be 
incorporated into the site design. Roof runoff will be collected in downspouts and 
conveyed to underground storage facility.  Water quality requirements shall be met 
for all runoff from all driving surfaces.  

 
 

C. Utility Improvements (Water and Sewer): 
The project will be required to meet all current City of Issaquah standards. Location 
of existing utilities, as well as proposed new utilities will need to be shown on the 
civil drawings submitted with the Site Development Permit. Compliance with the 
City’s standards will be determined during the Site Development Permit. None of 
the utility improvements will have a big impact on the site plan, as proposed. 

A. Power: Existing powerline shall be relocated underground. 
B. Sewer: Since the project has less than 10 units, the existing sewer may be used 

if it is a 6-inch diameter line and in good working condition. 
C. Water. Water supply for fire department use and for the residential units will 

be required.  
 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 28 of 86



Page 23 of 25 
 

D. Fire access: Fire trucks can park on Sunset Way or access the rear of the building 
through an existing alley. A concrete walkway from Sunset Way allows access to the 
sprinkler room located near the front of the building. Therefore, no additional on-
site fire vehicle access is required for this project. 

 
 

E. Impact and Mitigation Fees: 

The developer will be required to pay Impact and Mitigation Fees. Impact fees are 
required at the Issuance of Building Permits and by the mitigation/impact fee 
schedule in effect at that time. 

 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS AND STAFF RESPONSES 
 
The City did not receive any written comments for the Site Development Permit but received 
2 comments for the Administrative Adjustment of Height Standards. One citizen who lives 
next door called staff twice and expressed her concerns about the construction impacts to her 
quality of life; however, she did not submit a written comment.  The public comments and 
staff responses are included in the Administrative Adjustment of Height Standards Notice of 
Decision, and available on the City website, in the Active Project list of the Development 
Services Department. 

 
V. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Based on the submitted application and plans, the Administration recommends that the 
Development Commission move to: 
 

A. Approve the Site Development Permit for Sunset 7 Apartments, SDP16-00004, with 
plans, architectural drawings and technical studies submitted on April 21, 2016 , the 
staff report dated July 6, 2016, with Attachments 1 through 7, and the conditions of 
approval recommended below.  
 

B. Direct the Development Services Department to prepare the Findings of Fact which 
affirm the Development Commission’s decision to approve the Site Development 
Permit for Sunset 7 Apartments, SDP16-00004, based on plans, architectural drawings 
and technical studies submitted on April 21, 2016, the Staff Report dated July 6, 2016, 
with Attachments 1 through 7 and conditions of approval as adopted (or amended, if 
applicable) by the Development Commission on July 6, 2016. The staff analysis and 
conclusions in the Staff Report shall serve as the Findings of Fact. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
Nothing in this set of Recommended Conditions of Approval shall be interpreted to excuse the 
applicant from meeting all of the requirements of the City of Issaquah Comprehensive Plan, the 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 29 of 86



Page 24 of 25 
 

Issaquah Land Use Code, the International Building Code, the City’s Street Standards and other 
regulatory instruments used by the City to ensure public welfare, health and safety. 
 
                                                           
1  The Applicant shall mitigate for potential impacts on public services and bicycle and 

pedestrian facilities.  The City may approve a voluntary payment in lieu of other mitigation.  
The current mitigation fee is $78.56/multi-family unit for general government, $154.35/multi-
family unit for the police mitigation fee, and $462.75/apartment unit for the 
bicycle/pedestrian mitigation fee.  The mitigation fee will be assessed with issuance of 
building permits and the actual fee amount will be the adopted fee in effect at the time of 
permit issuance.  Applicant objections to the voluntary payment should be made during the 
SEPA comment period. 

2  The alley shall be repaved to provide unobstructed passage for the full 20-feet width required, 
from the western property line of the Sunset 7 project to the edge of the right-of-way of 4th 
Place SE. 

3  The garage openings shall be provided with decorative grills, such as the examples included in 
the staff report, that complement the character of the building or the community spaces that 
are adjacent to it. 

4  The parking space visible from the alley shall be screened with architectural and landscape 
elements without encroaching into the sight clearance triangle required by the City’s Streets 
Standards. 

5  Pedestrian-scale lighting shall be provided along the walkway, from the public sidewalk to the 
building entry. Lighting style shall complement and reinforce the architectural style of the 
building. 

6  Additional Type 1 or Type 2 landscape screening shall be provided along the south property 
line to screen views of the parking garage from residential uses across the alley. 

7  The Plant Schedule of the Landscape Plan shall include the following information for each 
plant species, in addition to planting size and spacing:  

• Size of plant at maturity, including height and width/spread 

• Plant category, whether deciduous or evergreen/coniferous 

• Additional plant characteristics required to meet the standards, such as drought 
resistance and which plants will provide year-round color 

8  Trees proposed for the side yards shall have a mature size that will not create an overcrowded 
condition for the tree roots and maintenance issues for the apartment building in the future. 
A combination of deciduous and evergreen trees with longer life span is preferred and should 
take into consideration the livability of residents and neighbors. 

9  A location within the lawn area shall be designated for temporary storage of trash containers 
to ensure that containers do not stored in the alley right-of-way during pick-up days. 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 30 of 86



Page 25 of 25 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                
10  The Applicant shall pay a fee-in-lieu of street frontage improvements equivalent to 

constructing sidewalks, curb and gutters, planter strip and half of the roadway based on the 
City’s streets standards for a minor arterial and may include a transition area extending east 
and west outside of the project’s frontage to connect back to the existing street conditions.  

The Applicant shall receive credit on their Traffic Impact Fees for paying the fee-in-lieu. The 
Applicant shall provide the City with an order of magnitude cost estimate for the half-street 
frontage improvements with the construction permit application. In order to receive the 
Traffic Impact Fees credit, the cost estimate shall be approved by the City. 

AGENDA ITEMS a)

Page 31 of 86



Page 32 of 86



ATTACHMENT 1       DESIGN STANDARDS: OLDE TOWN MULTI-FAMILY   
SDP16-00004 Sunset 7 Apartments 
Standard Intent Requirement Complies 

 

   1 

FRONT YARDS - DEPTH To enhance street face as a 
pedestrian friendly environment 
by reinforcing the historic 
building pattern in downtown 

New buildings shall be sited 
close to the sidewalk, with 
shallow front yards. 

Yes 

  

  Street facing façade shall be 
modulated no more than 10 
ft. deep and include recessed 
entries, gardens or plazas. 
(see illustration for Sunset 
Way setbacks) 

Yes. The façade is well-
modulated with 
recessed front porch, 
balconies and extended 
bays at various floors. 

  

  Setbacks may be increased 
for developments that 
dedicate front yards to 
public plazas. 

This is not the right 
location for a public 
plaza. 

FRONT YARD - 
TREATMENT 

To provide a feeling of separation 
between buildings and public 
pedestrian realm so that front 
yards function as usable outdoor 
spaces. 

Front yards shall include at 
least two of the following 
transitional elements:  

  

  a. steps  

  
b. low fences, less than 3 ft. 
high 

 

  
c. Trellises Yes 

  d. Site furnishings Encouraged 

  
e. Low hedges, less than 3 ft. 
high 

Yes 

  
f. Landscaped borders  

  

At least one of the following 
entrance elements between 
the sidewalk and the 
buildings:  

 No 

  a.  Gateways  
  b.  Archways  
  c.  Walkway covers  
  d.  Arbors  

  
e.  Variety of paving 
materials 

 

  

f. Pedestrian lighting See condition of 
approval for pedestrian 
lighting in Section F of 
the Staff Report. 

AGENDA ITEMS

Page 33 of 86



ATTACHMENT 1       DESIGN STANDARDS: OLDE TOWN MULTI-FAMILY   
SDP16-00004 Sunset 7 Apartments 
Standard Intent Requirement Complies 

 

   2 

ENTRIES FACING THE 
STREET 

To provide a clearly defined, 
welcoming and safe entry for 
pedestrians, from the sidewalk 
into the building. 

Architectural elements shall 
be used to provide a clearly 
identifiable and defensible 
entry visible from the street. 

 Yes 

  

Development shall include at 
least 2 of the following: 

  

       a. recesses Provided 
       b. balconies Provided 
       c. articulated roof forms Provided 
       d. front porches Provided 
       e. arches Not necessary 
       f. trellises Provided 

  

     g. glass at sides and/or   
above entry doors 

Provided 

  

     h. awnings and/or 
canopies 

For commercial 
storefront, if provided 

  

Pedestrian scale lighting 
and/or lighted bollards shall 
be provided. 

Not shown. Will be 
condition of approval. 

PRIVATE OUTDOOR 
SPACE 

To provide private outdoor 
spaces that encourage a sense of 
ownership by residents. 

Low walls, fences, hedges 
and landscaping shall be 
used to define and visually 
shield outdoor spaces such 
as yards, decks, terraces, and 
patios from each other and 
from the street. 

Yes 

*Defensible space is 
clearly associated with 
an individual dwelling 
unit and controlled by 
its occupants, but 
whichmay be viewed 
by the public. 

Apply defensible space and 
clear entry way principles. 

Yes, low hedge and 
other vegetation used 
as a natural barrier to 
define public space 
(sidewalk) from private 
front yard and porch. 

SITE LANDSCAPE 
AREAS 

To reinforce the character of 
Olde Town and the surrounding 
natural environment through site 
landscaping. 

All areas not devoted to 
landscape required by these 
standards, the Issaquah 
Municipal Code, parking, 
structures or other site 
improvements shall be 
planted, or remain in existing 
native, non-invasive 

N/A 

AGENDA ITEMS

Page 34 of 86



ATTACHMENT 1       DESIGN STANDARDS: OLDE TOWN MULTI-FAMILY   
SDP16-00004 Sunset 7 Apartments 
Standard Intent Requirement Complies 

 

   3 

vegetation. 

  

Where new landscape areas 
are provided, plant materials 
shall be a mixture of drought 
tolerant deciduous and 
evergreen varieties. A 
minimum 20% of plant 
varieties shall provide year-
round color, texture and/or 
other special interest. 

To be reviewed at 
Landscape Permit 

LOCATION OF 
PARKING LOTS 

To maintain a contiguous, active 
pedestrian street front along 
Primary Pedestrian Streets by 
locating parking lots behind 
buildings. 

Redevelopment -- Parking 
lots shall be relocated behind 
buildings when feasible. 
Where parking lots are 
allowed to remain in front of 
or beside buildings, parking 
lots shall: 

N/A .  1 parking space in 
the rear yard is 
provided but this 
standard applies to 
parking lots, not 
parking space. 

  

All parking lots (new 
development and 
redevelopment) shall comply 
with the parking lot 
standards set forth in the 
Issaquah Municipal Code 
including, but not limited to 
interior landscape areas, 
wheel stops, plant material 
requirements, and number 
of stalls. 

N/A but parking spaces 
and garage design are 
required to meet 
Parking Standards 

LOCATION OF 
DRIVEWAYS 

To maintain a contiguous, 
uninterrupted sidewalk by 
minimizing, consolidating and/or 
eliminating driveway access off 
Primary Pedestrian Streets. 

All vehicular driveways shall 
be located off side streets 
and alleys 

Yes, driveway is in the 
rear of the yard and 
accessed off the 
existing alley. 

PARKING LOT 
LANDSCAPE 

To reduce the visual impact of 
parking lots through landscape 
areas, trellises and/or other 
architectural features. 

Parking lot landscape shall 
be used to reinforce 
pedestrian and vehicular 
circulation, such as: 

N/A, this applies to 
pedestrian circulation in 
a large parking lot. 

  a. parking lot entrances;   
  b. ends of driving aisles; and   

AGENDA ITEMS

Page 35 of 86



ATTACHMENT 1       DESIGN STANDARDS: OLDE TOWN MULTI-FAMILY   
SDP16-00004 Sunset 7 Apartments 
Standard Intent Requirement Complies 

 

   4 

  

c. to define pedestrian 
walkways through parking 
lots. 

  

  

Low walls (minimum 3 feet 
high) used to screen parking 
lots shall be made of 
concrete, masonry or other 
similar material. Wood 
fences may be used provided 
they reflect the historic 
character of Olde Town. 
Where walls and/or fences 
are provided, landscape 
planting areas may be 
reduced to a minimum 5 feet 
and shall be located adjacent 
to the public right-of-way. 

Yes. A 42-inch garden 
wall made of Concrete 
Masonry Unit is 
provided. 

  

The combination of walls, 
fences and shrubs/ground 
cover shall not exceed a 
maximum height of 4 feet, 
unless all of the following are 
provided: 

No wall or landscape 
treatment above 4 feet 
is proposed.  

  

a. wall/fence/landscape 
treatment does not create a 
safety hazard; 

 

  

b. portion of wall/ fence/ 
landscape treatment that is 
above 4 feet in height is a 
minimum 75% transparent 
(i.e. see-through metal 
railing, trellis, or other 
similar treatment); and 

 

  

c. portion of wall/ fence/ 
landscape treatment that is 
above 4 feet in height 
provides added visual 
interest, detail and character 
suitable to the historic 
nature of Olde Town. 

 

AGENDA ITEMS

Page 36 of 86



ATTACHMENT 1       DESIGN STANDARDS: OLDE TOWN MULTI-FAMILY   
SDP16-00004 Sunset 7 Apartments 
Standard Intent Requirement Complies 

 

   5 

  

For any wall or fence above 6 
feet total height, the entire 
wall/fence facade shall 
comply with the building 
design standards set forth in 
this document for ground 
level details, materials, color, 
etc. 

  

  

A minimum 5 foot wide 
landscape planting area shall 
be provided between parking 
lots and adjacent 
developments to include a 
year-round sight barrier and 
meeting the requirements 
for parking lot landscape 
provided in the Issaquah 
Municipal Code, except 
where parking lots have 
been consolidated. 

Yes 

  
Signage on walls or fences 
will not be permitted. 

 Yes. No signage is 
proposed. 

  

Chain link fencing will not be 
allowed to screen parking 
lots. 

 Yes. No chain link 
fencing is proposed. 

PEDESTRIAN 
CONNECTIONS 

To create a network of linkages 
for pedestrians, including 
locating building entrances 
adjacent to sidewalks. 

1. Clearly defined pedestrian 
connections shall be 
provided: 

  

  

     a. between a public right-
of-way and building 
entrances when buildings are 
not located directly adjacent 
to the sidewalk; and 

Yes 

  

     b. between parking lots 
and building entrances. 

 N/A. This applies to 
internal pedestrian 
circulation in a large 
parking lot. There is 
only 1 parking space 
proposed for this 
project that is outside 
the building. 

  

2. Pedestrian connections 
shall be separated from 
vehicular traffic in a 
combination of 2 or more of 
the following ways: 

 N/A This applies to 
internal pedestrian 
circulation in a large 
parking lot. There is 
only 1 parking space 
proposed for this 
project that is outside 

AGENDA ITEMS

Page 37 of 86



ATTACHMENT 1       DESIGN STANDARDS: OLDE TOWN MULTI-FAMILY   
SDP16-00004 Sunset 7 Apartments 
Standard Intent Requirement Complies 

 

   6 

the building. 

  

3. Pedestrian connections 
shall be reinforced with 
pedestrian scale lighting 
(maximum 14 ft height), 
bollard lighting, accent 
lighting or a combination 
thereof to aid in pedestrians 
way-finding. 

Not provided. See 
condition in Lighting 
section of staff report. 

  

Pedestrian walkways shall 
include clear sight lines to 
building entrances and shall 
not be less than 5 feet wide. 

Yes, a 5-foot wide 
walkway is provided 
directly from the public 
sidewalk on Sunset Way 
to the building main 
entry. 

  

Where landscape areas are 
provided, plant material shall 
consist of a mixture of 
evergreen and deciduous 
trees and shrubs. A minimum 
20% of plant varieties shall 
provide year-round color, 
texture and/or other special 
interest. Shrubs shall be 
maintained at a maximum 3 
foot height for visibility. 
Ground cover shall be 
evergreen varieties. 

To be reviewed at 
Construction Permit.  

  

Rocks, pebbles, sand and 
similar nonliving materials 
may not be used as ground 
cover substitutes, but may 
be allowed as accent 
features within landscape 
planting areas so long as the 
area covered by such 
features does not exceed 5% 
of the total landscape 
planting area. 

Yes. The pea patch at 
the southeast corner of 
the lot is provided with 
wood chips, which is 
not considered ground 
cover, but necessary for 
access to the raised 
planter beds. Wood 
chips is considered 
pervious by IMC 
definition of impervious 
areas. 

  

Chain link fence may not be 
used to separate pedestrians 
from vehicular traffic. 

Yes. No chain link fence 
is proposed. 

AGENDA ITEMS

Page 38 of 86



ATTACHMENT 1       DESIGN STANDARDS: OLDE TOWN MULTI-FAMILY   
SDP16-00004 Sunset 7 Apartments 
Standard Intent Requirement Complies 

 

   7 

COMMUNITY 
GATEWAYS 

To highlight gateway areas as an 
entrance to the community. 

   N/A  This location is 
not identified as a 
Community Gateway in 
the Olde Town Design 
Standards Subarea 
Map. 

CREEKSIDE 
TREATMENT 

To integrate Issaquah Creek into 
the site design as an amenity 
while still complying complying 
with environmental regulations. 

  N/A 

ARTICULATION AND 
OVERALL 
MASSING/BULK OF 
BUILDINGS 

To reduce the apparent bulk of 
buildings by breaking them down 
into smaller components that are 
visually consistent with the scale 
of Olde Town. 

1. Walls facing streets shall 
be modulated with bays and 
recesses at least 8 ft. wide 
and no more than 25 ft. wide 
and at least 3 ft. deep. 

Yes, see sheets  A3.1 to 
A3.2 for dimensions 
demonstrating how the 
proposal meets this 
standard. 

 

 2. Modulation shall extend to 
the roof, except at balconies. 
The purpose is not to create 
a regular rigid solution but 
rather to break up the mass 
in creative ways. 

Yes 

 

 To provide visual variety along 
the street face. 

1. Buildings shall include 
articulation along the 
façades facing and visible 
from public rights-of-way. 
Flat blank walls are 
discouraged 

Yes. See main staff 
report for description of 
articulation applied to 
the building. 

ARTICULATION AND 
OVERALL 
MASSING/BULK OF 
BUILDINGS 
(continued) 

To provide visual variety along 
the street face. (continued) 

2. Horizontal façades longer 
than 25 ft. shall be 
articulated into smaller units, 
reminiscent of the residential 
scale of the neighborhood. 
At least two of the following 
methods shall be included: 
a. distinctive roof forms 
b. changes in materials 
c. window patterns 
d. and color differentiation 

N/A  No horizontal 
facades greater than 25 
feet is proposed. 

 ADDRESSING THE 
CORNER 

To provide a reference point at 
the end of a block of facades and 
to mark intersections, further 
providing visual interest to the 
street fabric 

Developments at street 
intersections shall emphasize 
this unique site aspect with 
one or more of the following 
methods: 

 N/A 

PITCHED ROOF FORMS 1.  To maintain and continue the 
historic image of Olde Town and 
its residential neighborhoods. 

1. Structures shall 
incorporate pitched roof 
forms having slopes between 

 Yes 

AGENDA ITEMS

Page 39 of 86



ATTACHMENT 1       DESIGN STANDARDS: OLDE TOWN MULTI-FAMILY   
SDP16-00004 Sunset 7 Apartments 
Standard Intent Requirement Complies 

 

   8 

4:12 and 12:12. 

 
 

2. Flat roofs shall have 
parapets or edge details that 
provide visual interest 

N/A 

 

 

ENCOURAGED, NOT 
REQUIRED 
3. Each façade facing a street 
should have a gabled form 
roof 

Yes 

ENTRIES & FRONT 
PORCHES 

 

To provide a safe and welcoming 
entry and to encourage social 
interaction among neighbors. 

1. All entries shall have a 
weatherproof roof covering, 
appropriate to the size and 
importance of the entry but 
at least 4 ft. deep and 4 ft. 
wide. 

Yes, weather protection 
is 4 feet deep and 6 feet 
wide. 

 

 

2. Primary entries shall 
provide secure access 
directly to dwelling units or 
through elevator lobbies, 
stairwells, and corridors. 

Yes 

 

 

3. Front porches are 
encouraged and should 
include architectural features 
to enhance their appearance 
and functionality: 

Yes, front porch with 
decorative trussed 
columns and stone base 
is provided 

WINDOWS AND 
DOORS 

 

To maintain a lively and active 
street face. 

1. Windows facing streets 
shall be transparent. Public 
spaces adjacent to the street 
or sidewalk are encouraged 
to have more and larger 
areas of transparent glass. 
 

Yes 

 

 

ENCOURAGED, NOT 
REQUIRED 

2. Façades should include 
windows of varying size, 
shape, and number of panes. 

Yes 

 

 

3. Cantilevered bay windows 
are encouraged and may be 
allowed to project up to 18 
inches into required 
setbacks. 

Not provided 

  4. Divided windows are 
encouraged, appropriate to 

Yes 

AGENDA ITEMS

Page 40 of 86



ATTACHMENT 1       DESIGN STANDARDS: OLDE TOWN MULTI-FAMILY   
SDP16-00004 Sunset 7 Apartments 
Standard Intent Requirement Complies 

 

   9 

the architectural style of the 
building. 

MATERIALS/ARCHITEC
TURAL DETAILS 
 

1. To encourage creative 
expression through diversity of 
architectural style that enlivens 
the street. 

2. To ensure a standard of quality 
that will be easily maintained and 
cared for over time. 

3. To encourage the use of 
materials appropriate to 
residential development and 
details that reduce the bulk of 
larger buildings. 

Exteriors shall be 
constructed of durable and 
maintainable materials. 
Materials that have texture, 
pattern or lend themselves 
to quality detailing include: 

a. Brick 
b. Stone 
c. Wood 

Yes, materials used 
include fiber-cement 
board for board and 
batten and lapsiding, 
which is the dominant 
material. Other 
materials include 
concrete masonry units. 
Wood, metal and stone 
veneer are used for 
decorative architectural 
elements such as 
trusses, garage opening 
grills, and masonry 
base. 

  PROHIBITED 

Materials that give the 
appearance of heavy 
industrial uses, such as:            
a. reflective glass 
b. corrugated metal siding 

Yes, no reflective glass 
or corrugated metal 
siding is proposed. 

GROUND LEVEL 
DETAILS (WHEN 
GROUND FLOOR IS 
COMMERCIAL) 
 

To ensure that mixed-use 
buildings that have commercial 
use on the ground floor display 
the greatest amount of visual 
interest and reinforce the 
character of the streetscape. 

Building located along a 
Primary Pedestrian Street 
shall incorporate at least 4 of 
the following elements into 
the ground floor, street-
facing façade: 

N/A 

CONCEALING 
STRUCTURED 
PARKING 
 

To integrate parking structures 
with the surrounding character. 

1. The ground level of 
parking structures shall be 
screened from view to the 
greatest extent possible. At 
least two of the following 
shall be used to screen the 
structure: 

Yes 

  a. Residential uses or lobbies Provided 

  b. Ornamental grillwork 
(plain vertical or horizontal 

Will be required as a 
condition of approval 

AGENDA ITEMS

Page 41 of 86



ATTACHMENT 1       DESIGN STANDARDS: OLDE TOWN MULTI-FAMILY   
SDP16-00004 Sunset 7 Apartments 
Standard Intent Requirement Complies 

 

   10 

bars are not acceptable) 

 
 

c. Decorative artwork, such 
as metal panels, murals, or 
mosaics 

Not provided 

 
 

d. Landscape features 
described in the Site Design 
Guidelines. 

Not provided 

 
 

e. Retail / commercial use, 
where appropriate 

Not provided 

SCREENING BLANK 
WALLS 
 

To mitigate blank walls by 
providing visual interest and 
reinforcing the historic character 
of Olde Town. 

1. Walls within public view 
shall have windows, reveals, 
architectural detail, etc. as 
already described in the 
standards. However, if an 
uninterrupted expanse of 
blank wall (longer than 30 
feet) portions of a blank 
facade or a building 
foundation is unavoidable, 
two or more of the following 
shall be used: 

Yes 

COLORS 
 

The color of an individual 
building should not overpower 
the consistency of Olde Town, 
rather it should be an integral 
part of the Olde Town character. 

1. Colors shall be selected 
from the color palette shown 
in Appendix A. If colors 
selected are not within the 
color system (Appendix A) 
then a Level 1 Review will be 
required.  

Colors proposed have 
different names but 
same shades as the 
colors in the Color 
System. 

 

 

2. No more than 4 colors 
shall be used on a structure. 
Sheer stains and natural 
materials are not included in 
the color count. More than 
four colors may be used if 
approved through a Level 1 
Review.  

Complies. The color 
palette consists of 3 
shades of grey and red 
as an accent color. 

  3. Solid colors with a matte N/A 

AGENDA ITEMS

Page 42 of 86



ATTACHMENT 1       DESIGN STANDARDS: OLDE TOWN MULTI-FAMILY   
SDP16-00004 Sunset 7 Apartments 
Standard Intent Requirement Complies 

 

   11 

finish shall be used on 
awnings. See Design 
Standards for additional info. 

 

 

4. Bright colors shall not be 
used for commercial 
purposes to draw attention 
to a building. 

Yes 

 

 

5. Awnings shall not be 
designed as signs; their 
principal purpose is weather 
protection. An awning 
signmay display only the 
name of the business, its 
business logo and address. 

N/A  No awnings 
proposed. 

 
 

6. Trim colors shall not be 
used for awnings. 

N/A  No awnings 
proposed. 

SIGNAGE:   
INTEGRATION WITH 
ARCHITECTURE  

To ensure that signage is a 
part of the overall design 
approach to a project and 
not added as an afterthought 
element. 

N/A  None proposed. If 
signage is proposed, a 
sign permit will be 
required and reviewed 
for compliance to 
design standards.  

 

AGENDA ITEMS

Page 43 of 86



Page 44 of 86



PROJECT 
SITE 

NORTH 

Clark Elem.entary 

Depot Park 

OLDE 
TOWN 

A achment A    VICINITY MAP 
COM15‐00003     355 E. SUNSET WAY APARTMENTS 

I-90 

A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 45 of 86

amyt
Text Box
2



Page 46 of 86



SITE

LOCATION

355 E. SUNSET WAY, ISSAQUAH WA.

PARCEL NUMBER 342406-9096

TOTAL SITE AREA

13,200 SQ. FT. (0.303 ACRES)

ZONING

MF-H MULTI-FAMILY HIGH (29 DU/ACRE)

MAX DU/ ACRE 29 DU / 0.303 ACRES = 8.787 UNITS

A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 47 of 86



Page 48 of 86



CITY OF ISSAQUAH
MITIGATED DETERMINATION OF NONSIGNIFICANCE (MDNS)

Description of Proposal: Construct a 4-story 7-unit multi-family development with 14 off-street
parking spaces on a 13,200 s.f. lot. There a¡e no critical areas on site.

A single-family home that cunently occupies the site will be demolished. Adjacent properties are single-
family homes and two similar multi-family developments within a block of the site.

Vehicle access to the site is through an existing alley in the rear of the property. The main building entry
faces Sunset Way.

Proponent: Rick Gulstrom
1804 136th P1. N.8., Ste. I
Bellerue, WA. 98005

Permit Number: SDPl6-00004 (Sunset 7 Apartments)

Location ofProposal: 355 E. Sunset Way, Issaquah, V/A 98027

Lead Agency: City oflssaquah

Determination: The lead agency has determined this proposal would not have a probable signifrcant
adverse impact on the environment. An environmental impact statement is not required under RCW
a3 .21C .030(2)(c). This decision was made after revìew of a completed environmental checklist and
other information on file with the lead agency. This information is available to the public on request.

Comment/Appeal Period: This Mitigated Dete¡mination of Nonsignificance is issued under WAC 197-
11-340(2) and 197-1 1-680(3)(a)vii, and is based on the proposal being conditioned as indicated below.
There is a 21-day combined comment/appeal period for this detemination, between June 2 to June 23,
2016. Anyone wishing to comment may submit written comments to the Responsible Official. The
Responsible Official will reconsider the determination based on timely comments. Any person aggrieved
by this determination may appeal by filing a Notice ofAppeal with the City oflssaquah Permit Center.
Appellants should prepare specifìc factual objections. Copies ofthe environmental determination and
other project application materials are available from the Issaquah Development Sewices Department,
1'77 5 12th Averlrc NW, Issaquah, W A 98027 .

Appeals ofthis SEPA determination must be consolidated with appeal ofthe underlying permit, per IMC
18.04.250.

Notes:

1. This threshold dete¡mination is based on review of the Plan Set including civil, architectue,
landscape, and Preliminary Storm Drainage Report - TIR (dat€d 212176) receled on Apnl21,2016;
Geotechnical Repofi (Geocroup Northwest, Inc., dated October 28, 2014); SEPA environmental
checklist prepared on February 12, 2015 and rensed on May 5, 20i6; and other documents in the
file.

2) Issuance ofthis threshold determination does not constitute approval ofthe project proposal. The
proposal will be reviewed for compliance with all applicable City oflssaquah codes, which regulate
development activities, including the Land Use Code, City of Issaquah Streets Standards, Building
Codes, Clearing and Grading Ordinance, and Surface Water Design Manual.

AGENDA ITEMS

Page 49 of 86



4.

Findings:

1. Land Use: The site is zoned Multi-family High Density (MF-H). It is located in the East Sunset

Way Development Area of Olde Town, as designated by the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed

multi-family development is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan vision and land use policies for
this subarea of Olde Town. The proposal will be evaluated in detail for compliance with the Central

Issaquah Plan policies and standards under the Site Development Permit.

Stormwater The Preliminary Drainage Report is provided as part ofthe TIR (Technical Information

P.eporr, dated 212116)

Trafhc: The proposal would generate approximately 47 daily weekday trips; with 4 trips during the

weekday AM peak hour and 5 trips during the weekday PM peak hour. With the City's traffic
concurrency system, development projects mitigate their impacts with pa)'ment of traffic mitigation
fees. The City utilizes traffic impact fees to construct identified road improvernents to maintain

adopted level of service (LOS) standards on a City-wide basis. The primary access would be

through an existing 2O-foot wide alley in the rear of the property. The existing alley is partially
paved and will be repaved up to the full width, and from the property to 4ú Place SE as part ofthe
required frontage ìmprovement.

Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities The Nexus Study for Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Mitigation
-Fees (Henderson Young & Company, December 10, 2014) was adopted by the City Council,

Ordinance #2733, effective February 2, 2015. The study quantifìes the direct impact ofnew
development on the current system ofbicycle and pedestrian facilities and the additional demands

from future growth to maintain the adopted level of service. The report uses trip generation rates

based on the different land use types to quantify the impacts ofnew development. It also identifres

16 specific bicycle and pedestrian projects that are needed to support the City's level of serwice

standard. Payment of mìtigation fees as determined in the study may satisfr a development's

requirement to mitigate their project impacts on the level of service standard. Ifthe developer

doesn't voluntarily use the methodology and mitigation fees as determined in the report, the

developer may choose other methods to quantify and mitigate their impact including conducting a

study of its impacts and identifoing altemate means of mitigating impacts to achieve the adopted

standards. The mitigation fee is presently $462.75lapafiment unit. The mitigation fee will be

assessed with issuance ofbuilding permits and the actual cost ofthe mitigation fee will be the

adopted fee in effect at the time of permit issuance. Applicant objections to the voluntary palment

should be made during the SEPA commørt period.

Public Services - The proposal would have a potential impact on public services, including police and

general govemment buildings. IMC Chapter 3.74, Methods to Mitigate Development Impacts,

provides altematives to mitigate for direct impacts of proposed development. The City may approve

a voluntâry pa)înent in lieu of other mitigation. Rate studies for police facilities and general

govemment buildings are included in IMC 18.10.260 as the City's SEPA policy base The rate

studies present the methodology and formulas for determining the amount ofthe mitigation fee

commensurate with the proposed land use and project impacts, The current mitigation fee is

$78,56/multi-family unit for general govemment and $154.35/multi-family unit for the police

mitigation fee. The mrtigation fee will be assessed with issuance ofbuilding permits and the actual

cost of the mitigation fee will be the adopted fee in effect at the time of pemtt issuance. Applicant

objections to the voluntary payment should be made during the SEPA comment period.

6.

AGENDA ITEMS

Page 50 of 86



Mitigation Measures: The Mitigated Determination of Nonsignificance is based on the SEPA
environmental checklist (prepared on February 12, 2015 and revised on May 5, 2016) and supplemental
technical information and plans listed above The following SEPA mitigation measures shall be deemed

conditions ofthe approval ofthe licensing decision pursuant to Chapter 18.10 ofthe Issaquah Land Use
Code. All conditions are based on policies adopted by reference in the Land Use Code.

1. The applicant shall mitigate for potential impacts on public services and bicycle and pedestrian
facilities. The City may approve a voluntary pa)¡ment in lieu of other mitigation. The current
mitigation fee is $78.56/multi-family unit for general government, $154.35/mu1ti-family unit for the
police mitigation fee, and 5462.7 Slapartnent unit for the bicycle/pedestrian mitigation fee. The
mìtigation fee will be assessed with issuance ofbuilding permits and the actual fee amount will be
the adopted fee in effect at the time ofpermit issuance. Applicant objections to the voluntary
paynent should be made durìng the SEPA comment period.

SEP-À Responsible Official

Position/Title:

Address/Phone:

Amv Tarce

Senìor Plànner

P.O. w A. 98027 -1307 (42s) 837 -3094

Date: 6/2116 Signature:

Washìngton State Department of Ecology
Muckleshoot Indian Tribe
U.S. Amy Corps of Engineers
Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife
Washington State Department of Archeology and Historic Preservation (DAHP)
Partìes of Record
Issaquah Development Services Depa¡tment
Issaquah Parks and Public Works Enginee¡ing Departments

AGENDA ITEMS

Page 51 of 86



AGENDA ITEMS

Page 52 of 86



AGENDA ITEMS

Page 53 of 86



AGENDA ITEMS

Page 54 of 86



AGENDA ITEMS

Page 55 of 86



AGENDA ITEMS

Page 56 of 86



AGENDA ITEMS

Page 57 of 86



AGENDA ITEMS

Page 58 of 86



AGENDA ITEMS

Page 59 of 86



AGENDA ITEMS

Page 60 of 86



AGENDA ITEMS

Page 61 of 86



AGENDA ITEMS

Page 62 of 86



AGENDA ITEMS

Page 63 of 86



AGENDA ITEMS

Page 64 of 86



AGENDA ITEMS

Page 65 of 86



Page 66 of 86



RESIDENTIAL CODE REVIEW

BUILDING AREA TOTAL

BUILDING HEIGHT

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION

BUILDING CLASSIFICATION

SPRINKLERED:

ALLOWABLE BUILDING AREA:

AREA INCREASE PER I.B.C. 506.3

TOTAL ALLOWABLE BLDG. AREA

TOTAL DWELLING UNITS

TYPE 'A' ACCESSIBLE UNITS

TYPE 'B' ACCESSIBLE UNITS

OCCUPANCY SEPARATION

BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE (LIVING AREA ONLY) PER FLOOR (INCLUDING CORRIDOR, STAIR AND ELEVATOR)

GARAGE FLOOR 1ST FLOOR 2ND FLOOR 3RD FLOOR TOTAL

* * * *

*
BUILDING AREA THE AREA INCLUDED WITHIN SURROUNDING EXTERIOR WALLS (AND FIRE WALLS) EXCLUSIVE OF VENT SHAFTS
AND COURTS.  AREAS OF THE BUILDING NOT PROVIDED WITH SURROUNDING WALLS SHALL BE INCLUDED IN THE BUILDING
AREA IF SUCH AREAS ARE INCLUDED WITHIN THE HORIZONTAL PROJECTIONS OF THE ROOF OR FLOOR ABOVE..

BUILDING DECK AND STORAGE SQUARE FOOTAGE AREA

DECK AREA

STOR. AREA

BLDG AREA

TOTAL

PARKING STRUCTURE CODE REVIEW

BUILDING AREA TOTAL

BUILDING HEIGHT

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION

BUILDING CLASSIFICATION

SPRINKLERED:

ALLOWABLE BUILDING AREA:

OCCUPANCY SEPARATION

DWELLING UNITS ALLOWED 18.07.360 TABLE 1

29 DU / 0.303 ACRES = 8.787 UNITS

UNIT TYPE AND COUNT PROVIDED

UNIT NAME UNIT DESCRIPTION UNIT COUNT AREA TOTAL UNIT AREA

TOTAL 7 UNITS

TYPE 'A' ACCESSIBLE UNITS

TYPE 'B' ACCESSIBLE UNITS

LOCATION
355 E. SUNSET WAY, ISSAQUAH WA.

PARCEL NUMBER 342406-9096

TOTAL SITE AREA

13,200 SQ. FT. (0.303 ACRES)

ZONING

MF-H MULTI-FAMILY HIGH (29 DU/ACRE) OLDE TOWN DESIGN

MAX DU/ ACRE 29 DU / 0.303 ACRES = 8.787 UNITS

GROSS FLOOR AREA
4,578 SQ. FT. + 13,694 SQ. FT. = 18,272 SQ. FT.

FLOOR AREA RATIO
18,272 / 13200 = 1.38

ZONING

MF-H MULTI-FAMILY HIGH (29 DU/ACRE)

OCCUPANCY

R-2 (MULTI-FAMILY) RESIDENTIAL / S-2 PARKING

SEISMIC ZONE D1

WIND DESIGN EXPOSURE
85 MPH

SOIL BEARING CAPACITY

2000 PSF (ASSUMED)

CONSTRUCTION TYPE:

TYPE I-A (NON COMBUSTIBLE)_PARKING STRUCTURE

CONSTRUCTION TYPE:

TYPE V-A (WOOD FRAMED)_RESIDENTIAL

BUILDING CODE: I.B.C. 2012

MECHANICAL CODE: I.M.C. 2012

PLUMBING CODE U.P.C 2012

ENERGY CODE: W.S.EC. 2012 ED.

ELECTRICAL CODE:

2008 N.E.C. (NFPA 70)

FIRE CODE: I.F.C. 2012

SETBACKS
FRONT 10 FT., SIDE 5 FT., REAR 20 FT

BUILDING HEIGHT

40 FT (ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENT REQUESTED 50 FT MAX.)

IMPERVIOUS SURFACE

REQUIREMENTS PER 18.07.360 TABLE 1

PROVIDED IMPERVIOUS AREAS

THAT PORTION OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SETION 34,

TOWNSHIP 24 NORTH, RANGE 6 EAST, W.M., IN KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DESCRIBED AS

FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF MILL STREET, WHICH IS 30 FEET SOUTH AND

EAST OF THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SUBDIVISION;

THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE 110 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 120 FEET;

THENCE WEST 110 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 120 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

SITUATE IN THE COUNTY OF KING, STATE OF WASHINGTON.

*
FLOOR AREA GROSS: THE FLOOR AREA WITHIN THE INSIDE PERIMETER OF THE EXTERIOR WALLS OF THE
BUILDING UNDER CONSIDERATION. (NOT INCLUDING VENT SHAFTS AND COURTS) INCLUDING CORRIDORS,
STAIRWAYS, CLOSETS AND INTERIOR WALL THICKNESS COLUMNS OR OTHER FEATURES. ALSO INCLUDES THE
USABLE AREA UNDER THE HORIZONTAL PROJECTIONS OF THE ROOF OR FLOOR ABOVE  (IE; PRIVATE OPEN SPACE/
DECKS)

** FLOOR AREA NET;  THE ACTUAL OCCUPIED AREA NOT INCLUDING UNOCCUPIED ACCESSORY AREAS SUCH AS
CORRIDORS, STAIRWAYS, TOILET ROOMS, MECHANICAL ROOMS AND CLOSETS.

OCCUPANT LOAD CALCULATIONS BY FLOOR (TABLE 1004.1.2)

GARAGE FLOOR (S-2)

PARKING

GARAGES

*

RESIDENTIAL GARAGE  FLOOR

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL  FIRST FLOOR

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL  SECOND FLOOR

RESIDENTIAL

RESIDENTIAL  THIRD FLOOR

RESIDENTIAL

TOTAL

PARKING REQUIREMENTS PER TABLE 18.09.050

LAND USE
REQUIRED PARKING

RESIDENTIAL

MULTIFAMILY: STUDIO

APARTMENT

MULTIFAMILY: OTHER THAN

STUDIO

PARKING SPACES REQUIRED FOR PROPOSED BUILDING

14

PARKING SPACES PROVIDED FOR PROPOSED BUILDING

GARAGE PARKING

STANDARD STALLS 9'-0"x20'-0"
6

COMPACT STALLS  MIN. 9'-0"x15'-0" 6

VAN HANDICAPPED STALL 16'-0"x20'-0" 1

TOTAL 13

ON SITE PARKING

COMPACT STALLS 9'-0"x15'-0" 1

TOTAL 14

N.E. 1/4 OF N.W. 1/4 OF SECTION 34, T. 24 N., R. 06 E., W.M
CITY OF ISSAQUAH, STATE OF WASHINGTON

PERVIOUS SURFACE (OPEN SPACE AND/ OR COMMUNITY SPACE)

PROVIDED PERVIOUS AREAS

OPEN SPACE REQUIREMENTS

REQUIRED

REQUIRED MIN. OUTDOOR SPACE PER UNIT (6'-0"x8'-0" MIN. DIM.) 48

SF. /

UNITS

(PRIVATE OR COMMON OPEN SPACE) PER 18.07.440
7 UNITS 336

SQ. FT

PROVIDED (PRIVATE OPEN SPACE)

1ST FLOOR 2ND FLOOR 3RD FLOOR PROVIDED

7 UNITS

DECK AREA
495 SQ. FT.

ARCHITECTURAL

A 1.1     COVER SHEET

A 2.1     PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

A 2.2     CIRCULATION SITE PLAN

A 3.1     GARAGE AND FIRST FLOOR BUILDING PLAN

A 3.2     SECOND & THIRD FLOOR BUILDING PLAN

A 3.3     ROOF PLAN

A 4.1     BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A 4.2     BUILDING ELEVATIONS

A 4.3     BUILDING ELEVATIONS COLOR SCHEME

A 4.4     BUILDING ELEVATIONS COLOR SCHEME

A 5.1     PERSPECTIVES OF PROPOSED BUILDING

A 6.1     SUN AND SHADOW ANALYSIS

SURVEY

1 OF 1 SURVEY

CIVIL

C1.0 COVER/ EX. CONDITIONS/ DEMO. SHEET

C2.0 TESC & GRADING PLAN

C3.0 DRAINAGE & UTILITY PLAN

C4.0 DETAILS

EX-A EXHIBIT A

LANDSCAPE

L1 LANDSCAPE PLAN

SITE

BID SET
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

REDLINE
SET

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 67 of 86



SITE PLAN &
PARKING LEVEL

LEGEND:

BID SET
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

REDLINE
SET

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

GARBAGE PICKUP:
SEE COVER SHEET FOR CALCULATION UNDER
PROPOSED SITE AND ARCHITECTURAL CONCEPTS.

TRASH/ RECYCLING & YARD WASTE WILL BE ROLLED OUT
ON PICK UP DATE BY APARTMENT MANAGER
ON A WEEKLY BASIS

A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 68 of 86



SITE CIRCULATION PLAN &
PARKING LEVEL

BID SET
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

REDLINE
SET

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 69 of 86



GARAGE FLOOR BUILDING PLAN
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

4
3

1
5

C
O

M
P

A
C

T
C

O
M

P
A

C
T

6

8
9

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

2

C
O

M
P

A
C

T
C

O
M

P
A

C
T

C
O

M
P

A
C

T

7

U-1023  HC

FIRST FLOOR BUILDING PLAN
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

U-1468(1)

U-1023(1)
HC

U-1573(1)

BID SET
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

REDLINE
SET

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 70 of 86



SECOND FLOOR BUILDING PLAN
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

U-2093(2)

THIRD FLOOR BUILDING PLAN
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

LEGEND:

XX

BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE (LIVING AREA ONLY) PER FLOOR (INCLUDING CORRIDOR, STAIR AND ELEVATOR)

GARAGE FLOOR 1ST FLOOR 2ND FLOOR 3RD FLOOR TOTAL

* * * *

*
BUILDING AREA THE AREA INCLUDED WITHIN SURROUNDING EXTERIOR WALLS (AND FIRE WALLS) EXCLUSIVE OF VENT SHAFTS
AND COURTS.  AREAS OF THE BUILDING NOT PROVIDED WITH SURROUNDING WALLS SHALL BE INCLUDED IN THE BUILDING
AREA IF SUCH AREAS ARE INCLUDED WITHIN THE HORIZONTAL PROJECTIONS OF THE ROOF OR FLOOR ABOVE..

4339 x 25% x 3= 3254.3 SF

25% REDUCTION OF THE GROSS AREA
FROM 2ND FLOOR TO 3RD FLOOR

3251/4339 = 74.92%
= 25.08% REDUCTION PROVIDED

&
 

BID SET
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

REDLINE
SET

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 71 of 86



 ROOF PLAN
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

BID SET
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

REDLINE
SET

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 72 of 86



ELEVATOR
HALLWAY
HALLWAY
HALLWAY
LOBBY

AVERAGE GRADE
=111.94'

UNIT 1437(3)
UNIT 1437(2)
UNIT 1573(1)
GARAGE

NORTH ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

UNIT 1023(3)
UNIT 2093(2)
UNIT 1023 HC
GARAGE

STAIR AAVERAGE GRADE
=111.94'

UNIT 1468(1)
GARAGE

ELEVATOR

SIDEWLK SIDEWLKE. SUNSET WAY

30'-0"
BLDG

HEIGHT
FOR SF-D
ZONING

40'-0"
BLDG

HEIGHT
FOR MF-H
ZONING

PARKING PARKINGALLEY

EAST ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

ELEVATION SIDING LEGEND

BID SET
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

REDLINE
SET

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 73 of 86



UNIT 2093(2)
UNIT 1468(1)
GARAGE

AVERAGE GRADE
=111.94'

SOUTH ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

STAIR B UNIT 2093(2)
UNIT 1468(1)
GARAGE

UNIT 1437(3)
UNIT 1437(2)
UNIT 1573(1)
GARAGE

AVERAGE GRADE
=111.94'

SIDEWLK

40'-0"
BLDG

HEIGHT
FOR MF-H
ZONING

SIDEWLK E. SUNSET WAY

30'-0"
BLDG

HEIGHT
FOR SF-D
ZONING

PARKINGPARKING

WEST ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

ELEVATION SIDING LEGEND

BID SET
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

REDLINE
SET

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 74 of 86



ELEVATOR
HALLWAY
HALLWAY
HALLWAY
LOBBY

AVERAGE GRADE
=111.94'

UNIT 1437(3)
UNIT 1437(2)
UNIT 1573(1)
GARAGE

NORTH ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

UNIT 1023(3)
UNIT 2093(2)
UNIT 1023 HC
GARAGE

STAIR AAVERAGE GRADE
=111.94'

UNIT 1468(1)
GARAGE

ELEVATOR

SIDEWLK SIDEWLKE. SUNSET WAY

30'-0"
BLDG

HEIGHT
FOR SF-D
ZONING

40'-0"
BLDG

HEIGHT
FOR MF-H
ZONING

PARKING PARKINGALLEY

EAST ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

ELEVATION COLOR SIDING LEGEND

BID SET
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

REDLINE
SET

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 75 of 86



UNIT 2093(2)
UNIT 1468(1)
GARAGE

AVERAGE GRADE
=111.94'

SOUTH ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

STAIR B UNIT 2093(2)
UNIT 1468(1)
GARAGE

UNIT 1437(3)
UNIT 1437(2)
UNIT 1573(1)
GARAGE

AVERAGE GRADE
=111.94'

SIDEWLK

40'-0"
BLDG

HEIGHT
FOR MF-H
ZONING

SIDEWLK E. SUNSET WAY

30'-0"
BLDG

HEIGHT
FOR SF-D
ZONING

PARKINGPARKING

WEST ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

ELEVATION COLOR SIDING LEGEND

BID SET
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

REDLINE
SET

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 76 of 86



N.E. 1/4 OF N.W. 1/4 OF SECTION 34, T. 24 N., R. 06 E., W.M
CITY OF ISSAQUAH, STATE OF WASHINGTON

ELEVATION COLOR SIDING LEGEND

BID SET
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

REDLINE
SET

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 77 of 86



PROPOSED SHADOW

+6'-0"+/- OVER 40'-0" HT.

SHADOW @ 40'-0" HT.

PROPOSED SHADOW +6'-0"+/-

OVER 40'-0" HT.

SHADOW @ 40'-0" HT.

PROPOSED SHADOW

+6'-0"+/- OVER 40'-0" HT.

SHADOW @ 40'-0" HT.

PROPOSED SHADOW

+6'-0"+/- OVER 40'-0" HT.

SHADOW @ 40'-0" HT.

PROPOSED

SHADOW +6'-0"+/-

OVER 40'-0" HT.

SHADOW @ 40'-0" HT.

PROPOSED SHADOW

+6'-0"+/- OVER 40'-0" HT.

SHADOW @ 40'-0" HT.

BID SET
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

REDLINE
SET

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

PRELIMINARY

A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 78 of 86



LOCATION
355 E. SUNSET WAY, ISSAQUAH WA.

PARCEL NUMBER 342406-9096

TOTAL SITE AREA

13,200 SQ. FT. (0.303 ACRES)

ZONING

MF-H MULTI-FAMILY HIGH (29 DU/ACRE)

MAX DU/ ACRE 29 DU / 0.303 ACRES = 8.787 UNITS







▪
▪

▪

▪
▪

▪

A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 79 of 86



A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 80 of 86



A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 81 of 86



A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 82 of 86



A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 83 of 86



A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 84 of 86



A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 85 of 86



SITE

LOCATION

355 E. SUNSET WAY, ISSAQUAH WA.

PARCEL NUMBER 342406-9096

TOTAL SITE AREA

13,200 SQ. FT. (0.303 ACRES)

ZONING

MF-H MULTI-FAMILY HIGH (29 DU/ACRE)

MAX DU/ ACRE 29 DU / 0.303 ACRES = 8.787 UNITS

A
G

EN
D

A
 ITEM

S

P
age 86 of 86


	Agenda
	1. a) >View Roster
	2. a) >View Draft Minutes - 08 Jun 2016
	3. a) >View Staff Report
	3.   01_Design Standards
	3.   02_Vicinity Map
	3.   03_Existing Conditions
	3.   04_SEPA and MDNS
	3.   05_Site Plans


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




